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AB9146589_SRN_FORM_1763547793307

All fields marked in * are mandatory

Refer instruction kit for filing the form

HindiEnglish

Form language

[Pursuant to sub-section (1) of section 92 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and sub-rule (1) of rule 11 of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,
2014]

Annual Return (other than OPCs and Small
Companies)

Form No. MGT-7

1763547793307

I REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

i *Corporate Identity Number (CIN) U65910KL1996PLC010648

ii  (a) *Financial year for which the annual return is being filed (From date) (DD/MM/YYYY) 01/04/2024

(b) *Financial year for which the annual return is being filed (To date) (DD/MM/YYYY) 31/03/2025

Original Revised(c) *Type of Annual filing

(d) SRN of MGT-7  filed earlier for the same financial years

iii

Particulars As on filing date As on the financial year end date

Name of the company S M L FINANCE LIMITED S M L FINANCE LIMITED

Registered office address EL/XV652KMC  BETHANI COMPLEXTHRISSUR
ROAD
KUNNAMKULAM,NA,THRISSUR,Kerala,India,680
503

EL/XV652KMC  BETHANI COMPLEXTHRISSUR
ROAD
KUNNAMKULAM,NA,THRISSUR,Kerala,India,680
503

Latitude details 10.67664 10.67664

Longitude details 76.071586 76.071586

Photograph of the registered
office of the Company.pdf

(a) *Photograph of the registered office of the Company
        showing external building and name prominently visible

AA******1F(b) *Permanent Account Number (PAN) of the company

*****m@gmail.com
(c) *e-mail ID of the company

80******51(d) *Telephone number with STD code

mailto:*****m@gmail.com(c)
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(e) Website

13/08/1996iv *Date of Incorporation (DD/MM/YYYY)

Public companyv   (a) *Class of Company (as on the financial year end date)
            (Private company/Public Company/One Person Company)

Company limited by shares(b) *Category of the Company (as on the financial year end date)
         (Company limited by shares/Company limited by guarantee/Unlimited company)

Indian Non-Government company(c) *Sub-category of the Company (as on the financial year end date)
        (Indian Non-Government company/Union Government Company/State Government Company/
        Guarantee and association company/Subsidiary of Foreign Company)

Yes Novi *Whether company is having share capital (as on the financial year end date)

Yes Novii  (a) Whether shares listed on recognized Stock Exchange(s)

(b) Details of stock exchanges where shares are listed

S. No. Stock Exchange Name Code

viii Number of Registrar and Transfer Agent

CIN of the Registrar and
Transfer Agent

Name of the Registrar and
Transfer Agent

Registered office address of
the Registrar and Transfer
Agents

SEBI registration number
of Registrar and Transfer
Agent

Yes Noix * (a) Whether Annual General Meeting (AGM) held

30/09/2025(b) If yes, date of AGM (DD/MM/YYYY)

30/09/2025(c) Due date of AGM (DD/MM/YYYY)

Yes No(d) Whether any extension for AGM granted

(e) If yes, provide the Service Request Number (SRN) of the GNL-1 application form
        filed for extension

(f) Extended due date of AGM after grant of extension (DD/MM/YYYY)
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(g) Specify the reasons for not holding the same

1i *Number of business activities

II PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

S.
No.

Main Activity
group code

Description of Main
Activity group

Business Activity
Code

Description of
Business Activity

% of turnover of
the company

1 K Financial and insurance
activities 65

Insurance,
reinsurance and
pension funding,

except compulsory
social security

100

1i *No. of Companies for which information is to be given

III PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES (INCLUDING JOINT VENTURES)

S.
No.

CIN /FCRN Other registration
number

Name of the
company

Holding/
Subsidiary/Associate/Jo
int Venture

% of
shares
held

1 U65910KL1987PTC004722
VANCHINAD

FINANCE PRIVATE
LIMITED

Subsidiary 100

i SHARE CAPITAL
     (a) Equity share capital

IV SHARE CAPITAL, DEBENTURES AND OTHER SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Particulars Authorised Capital Issued capital Subscribed capital Paid Up capital

Total number of equity shares 130000.00 60302.00 60302.00 60302.00

Total amount of equity
shares (in rupees) 130000000.00 60302000.00 60302000.00 60302000.00
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Number of classes 1

Class of shares

Equity

Authorised Capital Issued capital Subscribed Capital Paid Up capital

Number of equity shares 130000 60302 60302 60302

Nominal value per share (in rupees)
1000 1000 1000 1000

Total amount of equity shares (in
rupees ) 130000000 60302000 60302000 60302000

(b) Preference share capital

Particulars Authorised Capital Issued capital Subscribed capital Paid Up capital

Total number of preference
shares 20000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total amount of preference
shares (in rupees) 20000000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1Number of classes

Class of shares

Preference

Authorised Capital Issued capital Subscribed Capital Paid Up capital

Number of preference shares 20000 0 0 0

Nominal value per share (in rupees)
1000 1000 1000 1000

Total amount of preference shares (in

rupees )
20000000 0.00 0 0

(c) Unclassified share capital

Particulars Authorised Capital
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Total amount of unclassified shares
0

(d) Break-up of paid-up share capital

Particulars Number of shares Total Nominal
Amount

Total Paid-up
amount

Total
premium

Physical DEMAT Total

(i) Equity shares

At the beginning of the year 0 60302 60302.00 60302000 60302000

Increase during the year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0

i Public Issues 0 0 0.00 0 0

ii Rights issue 0 0 0.00 0 0

iii Bonus issue 0 0 0.00 0 0

 iv Private Placement/ Preferential
allotment

0 0 0.00 0 0

v ESOPs 0 0 0.00 0 0

vi Sweat equity shares allotted 0 0 0.00 0 0

vii Conversion of Preference share 0 0 0.00 0 0

viii Conversion of Debentures 0 0 0.00 0 0

ix GDRs/ADRs 0 0 0.00 0 0

x Others, specify

Decrease during the year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0

i Buy-back of shares 0 0 0.00 0 0

ii Shares forfeited 0 0 0.00 0 0

iii Reduction of share capital 0 0 0.00 0 0

iv Others, specify

0

At the end of the year 0.00 60302.00 60302.00 60302000.00 60302000.00

(ii) Preference shares

At the beginning of the year 0 0 0.00 0 0
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Particulars Number of shares Total Nominal
Amount

Total Paid-up
amount

Total
premium

Increase during the year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0

i Issues of shares 0 0 0.00 0 0

ii Re-issue of forfeited shares 0 0 0.00 0 0

iii Others, specify

0

Decrease during the year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0

i Redemption of shares 0 0 0.00 0 0

ii Shares forfeited 0 0 0.00 0 0

iii Reduction of share capital 0 0 0.00 0 0

iv Others, specify

0

At the end of the year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

ISIN of the equity shares of the company

0ii Details of stock split/consolidation during the year (for each class of shares)

Class of shares

Before split /  Consolidation Number of shares

Face value per share

After split / consolidation Number of shares

Face value per share

iii Details of shares/Debentures Transfers since closure date of last financial year (or in the case of the first return at any time
since the incorporation of the company)

  Nil

Number of transfers
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Attachments:

1.        Details of shares/Debentures Transfers

0

iv Debentures (Outstanding as at the end of financial year)
    (a) Non-convertible debentures

*Number of classes

Classes of non-convertible debentures Number of units Nominal value
per unit

Total value
(Outstanding at the
end of the year)

Total

Classes of non-convertible debentures Outstanding as at
the beginning of
the year

Increase during
the year

Decrease
during the year

Outstanding
as at the end
of the year

Total

0*Number of classes

(b) Partly convertible debentures

Classes of partly convertible debentures Number of units Nominal value
per unit

Total value
(Outstanding at the
end of the year)

Total

Classes of partly convertible debentures Outstanding as at
the beginning of
the year

Increase during
the year

Decrease
during the year

Outstanding
as at the end
of the year

Total
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0*Number of classes

(c) Fully convertible debentures

Classes of fully convertible debentures Number of units Nominal value
per unit

Total value
(Outstanding at the
end of the year)

Total

Classes of fully convertible debentures Outstanding as at
the beginning of
the year

Increase during
the year

Decrease
during the year

Outstanding
as at the end
of the year

Total

(d) Summary of Indebtedness

Particulars Outstanding as at
the beginning of the
year

Increase during
the year

Decrease
during the year

Outstanding as at
the end of the year

Non-convertible debentures 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Partly convertible debentures 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Fully convertible debentures 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0 v Securities (other than shares and debentures)

Type of
Securities

Number of
Securities

Nominal Value of
each Unit

Total Nominal
Value

Paid up Value
of each Unit

Total Paid up
Value

Total

V Turnover and net worth of the company (as defined in the Companies Act, 2013)
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156236260i *Turnover

ii * Net worth of the Company 507851520

VI SHARE HOLDING PATTERN

A Promoters

S.
No

Category Equity Preference

Number of shares Percentage Number of shares Percentage

1 Individual/Hindu
Undivided Family

(i) Indian 60302 100.00 0 0.00

(ii) Non-resident
Indian (NRI) 0 0.00 0 0.00

 (iii) Foreign national
(other than NRI) 0 0.00 0 0.00

2 Government

(i) Central
Government 0 0.00 0 0.00

(ii) State Government 0 0.00 0 0.00

(iii) Government
companies 0 0.00 0 0.00

3 Insurance companies 0 0.00 0 0.00

4 Banks 0 0.00 0 0.00

5 Financial institutions 0 0.00 0 0.00

6 Foreign institutional
investors 0 0.00 0 0.00

7 Mutual funds 0 0.00 0 0.00

8 Venture capital 0 0.00 0 0.00

9 Body corporate
(not mentioned above) 0 0.00 0 0.00
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10 Others

Total 60302.00 100 0.00 0

7Total number of shareholders (promoters)

B  Public/Other than promoters

S.
No

Category Equity Preference

Number of shares Percentage Number of shares Percentage

1 Individual/Hindu
Undivided Family

(i) Indian 0 0.00 0 0.00

(ii) Non-resident
Indian (NRI) 0 0.00 0 0.00

(iii) Foreign national
(other than NRI) 0 0.00 0 0.00

2 Government

(i) Central
Government 0 0.00 0 0.00

(ii) State Government 0 0.00 0 0.00

(iii) Government
companies 0 0.00 0 0.00

3 Insurance companies 0 0.00 0 0.00

4 Banks 0 0.00 0 0.00

5 Financial institutions 0 0.00 0 0.00

6 Foreign institutional
investors 0 0.00 0 0.00

7 Mutual funds 0 0.00 0 0.00

8 Venture capital 0 0.00 0 0.00

9 Body corporate
(not mentioned above) 0 0.00 0 0.00
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10 Others

Total 0.00 0 0.00 0

0Total number of shareholders (other than promoters)

7.00Total number of shareholders (Promoters + Public/Other than promoters)

Breakup of total number of shareholders (Promoters + Other than promoters)

Sl.No Category

   1   Individual - Female 2

   2   Individual - Male 5

   3   Individual - Transgender 0

   4  Other than individuals 0

  Total 7.00

C Details of Foreign institutional investors’ (FIIs) holding shares of the company

Name of the
FII

Address Date of Incorporation Country of
Incorporation

Number of
shares held

% of shares
held

VII NUMBER OF PROMOTERS, MEMBERS, DEBENTURE HOLDERS
[Details of Promoters, Members (other than promoters), Debenture holders]

Details At the beginning of the year At the end of the year

Promoters 7 7

Members (other than promoters) 0 0

Debenture holders 463 463

VIII DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
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A Composition of Board of Directors

Category Number of directors at the
beginning of the year

Number of directors at the
end of the year

Percentage of shares held by
directors as at the end of
year

Executive Non-
executive

Executive Non-
executive

Executive Non-
executive

A Promoter 1 2 1 2 28.7 2.51

B Non-Promoter 1 3 1 2 0.00 0.00

i Non-Independent 1 1 1 1 0 0

ii Independent 0 2 0 1 0 0

C Nominee Directors
representing 0 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

i. Banks and  FIs 0 0 0 0 0 0

ii Investing institutions 0 0 0 0 0 0

iii Government 0 0 0 0 0 0

iv Small share holders 0 0 0 0 0 0

v Others

Total 2 5 2 4 28.70 2.51

*Number of Directors and Key managerial personnel (who is not director) as on
  the financial year end date

6

B (i) Details of directors and Key managerial personnel as on the closure of financial year

Name DIN/PAN Designation Number of equity
shares held

Date of cessation (after
closure of financial year :
If any) (DD/MM/YYYY)

GRIGER CHERRY
WILLIAMS 00145586 Managing Director 17311

CHUNGATH CHERU
SIMON 00074163 Director 1208

SUSANNA ISAAC 03296118 Director 309

JOJO JOSEPH
NJEZHUVINKEL 07538990 Director 0

KOCHERIL ITTOOP
VARGHESE 08291568 Director 0

ABIN M BEHANAN 08712671 Director 0
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1B (ii) *Particulars of change in director(s) and Key managerial personnel during the year

Name DIN/PAN Designation at the
beginning / during the
financial year

Date of appointment/
change in designation/
cessation
(DD/MM/YYYY)

Nature of change
(Appointment/ Change in
designation/ Cessation)

PUTHUKKUNNATHU
KURIAKOSE

THANKARAJAN
09770679 Director 17/02/2025 Cessation

IX MEETINGS OF MEMBERS/CLASS OF MEMBERS/ BOARD/COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A MEMBERS/CLASS /REQUISITIONED/NCLT/COURT CONVENED MEETINGS

*Number of meetings held 1

Type of meeting Date of meeting
(DD/MM/YYYY)

Total Number of
Members entitled to
attend meeting

Attendance

Number of
members
attended

% of total shareholding

Annual General
Meeting 28/09/2024 7 7 100

B BOARD MEETINGS

7*Number of meetings held

S.No Date of meeting
(DD/MM/YYYY)

Total Number of directors
as on the date of
meeting

Attendance

Number of directors
attended

% of attendance

1 26/06/2024 7 7 100

2 17/08/2024 7 7 100

3 28/09/2024 7 7 100

4 21/12/2024 7 7 100

5 13/01/2025 7 7 100

6 28/02/2025 7 7 100
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7 20/03/2025 7 7 100

6Number of meetings held

C COMMITTEE MEETINGS

S.No Type of meeting Date of meeting
(DD/MM/YYYY)

Total Number of
Members as on the
date of meeting

Attendance

Number of members
attended

% of attendance

1
Nomination and
Remuneration

Committee
28/09/2024 3 3 100

2 Audit Committee
Meeting 26/06/2024 3 3 100

3 Audit Committee
Meeting 17/08/2024 3 3 100

4 Audit Committee
Meeting 28/09/2024 3 3 100

5 Audit Committee
Meeting 21/12/2024 3 3 100

6 Audit Committee
Meeting 13/01/2025 3 3 100

D ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS

S.
N
o

Name
of the
Director

Board Meetings Committee Meetings Whether
attended AGM
held on

Number of
Meetings
which
director
was
entitled to
attend

Number
of
Meetings
attended

% of
attenda
nce

Number of
Meetings
which
director
was entitled
to attend

Number
of
Meetings
attended

% of
attend
ance 30/09/2025

(Y/N/NA)

1 GRIGER CHERRY WILLIAMS 7 7 100 6 6 100 Yes

2 CHUNGATH CHERU SIMON 7 7 100 6 6 100 Yes

3 SUSANNA ISAAC 7 7 100 6 6 100 Yes

4 JOJO JOSEPH
NJEZHUVINKEL 7 7 100 6 6 100 Yes

5 KOCHERIL ITTOOP
VARGHESE 7 7 100 6 6 100 Yes
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6 ABIN M BEHANAN 7 7 100 6 6 100 Yes

X REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

  Nil

1A *Number of Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager
       whose remuneration details to be entered

S.
No.

Name Designation Gross salary Commission Stock Option/
Sweat equity

Others Total
amount

1 GRIGER CHERRY
VILLIAM

Managing
Director 3600000 0 0 0 3600000.00

Total 3600000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3600000.00

1B *Number of  CEO, CFO and Company secretary whose remuneration
      details to be entered

S.
No.

Name Designation Gross salary Commission Stock Option/
Sweat equity

Others Total
amount

1 SIBIN PAULSON CFO 1165000 0 0 0 1165000.00

Total 1165000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1165000.00

1C *Number of  other directors whose remuneration details to be entered

S.
No.

Name Designation Gross salary Commission Stock Option/
Sweat equity

Others Total
amount

1 JOJO JOSEPH
NJEZHUVINKEL Director 1200000 0 0 0 1200000.00

Total 1200000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1200000.00

XI MATTERS RELATED TO CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCES AND DISCLOSURES

Yes NoA *Whether the company has made compliances and disclosures in respect of applicable
       provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year

B If No, give reasons/observations
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XII PENALTY AND PUNISHMENT – DETAILS THEREOF

A *DETAILS OF PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT IMPOSED ON COMPANY/
      DIRECTORS/OFFICERS

  Nil

Name of the
company/
directors/
officers

Name of the
court/ concerned
Authority

Date of Order
(DD/MM/YYYY)

Name of the Act and
section under which
penalised / punished

Details of
penalty/
punishment

Details of appeal
(if any) including
present status

B *DETAILS OF COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES   Nil

Name of the
company/
directors/
officers

Name of the
court/ concerned
Authority

Date of Order
(DD/MM/YYYY)

Name of the Act and

section under which

offence committed

Particulars of
offence

Amount of
compounding (in
rupees)

XIII Details of Shareholder / Debenture holder

8Number of shareholder/ debenture holder

XIV Attachments

Details of Shareholder or
Debenture holder.xlsm

(a) List of share holders, debenture holders

(b) Optional Attachment(s), if any
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XV COMPLIANCE OF SUB-SECTION (2) OF SECTION 92, IN CASE OF LISTED COMPANIES

In case of a listed company or a company having paid up share capital of Ten Crore rupees or more or turnover of Fifty Crore
rupees or more, details of company secretary in whole time practice certifying the annual return in Form MGT-8.

I/We certify that:

(a) The return states the facts, as they stood on the date of the closure of the financial year aforesaid correctly and adequately.
(b) Unless otherwise expressly stated to the contrary elsewhere in this return, the Company has complied with applicable
provisions of the Act during the financial year.

(c) The company has not, since the date of the closure of the last financial year with reference to which the last return was
submitted or in the case of a first return since the date of incorporation of the company, issued any invitation to the public to
subscribe for any securities of the company.
(d) Where the annual return discloses the fact that the number of members, (except in case of one person company), of the
company exceeds two hundred, the excess consists wholly of persons who under second proviso to clause (ii) of sub-section (68)
of section 2 of the Act are not to be included in reckoning the number of two hundred.

     I/ We have examined the registers, records and books and papers of  as required to be

     maintained under the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder for the financial year ended on

    (DD/MM/YYYY)

In my/ our opinion and to the best of my information and according to the examinations carried out by me/ us and explanations
furnished to me/ us by the company, its officers and agents, I/ we certify that:
A The Annual Return states the facts as at the close of the aforesaid financial year correctly and adequately.
B During the aforesaid financial year the Company has complied with provisions of the Act & Rules made there under in respect of:
1 its status under the Act;
2 maintenance of registers/records & making entries therein within the time prescribed therefor;
3 filing of forms and returns as stated in the annual return, with the Registrar of Companies, Regional Director, Central
Government, the Tribunal , Court or other authorities within/beyond the prescribed time;
4 calling/ convening/ holding meetings of Board of Directors or its committees, if any, and the meetings of the members of the
company on due dates as stated in the annual return in respect of which meetings, proper notices were given and the proceedings
including the circular resolutions and resolutions passed by postal ballot, if any, have been properly recorded in the Minute
Book/registers maintained for the purpose and the same have been signed;
5 closure of Register of Members / Security holders, as the case may be.
6 advances/loans to its directors and/or persons or firms or companies referred in section 185 of the Act;
7 contracts/arrangements with related parties as specified in section 188 of the Act;
8 issue or allotment or transfer or transmission or buy back of securities/ redemption of preference shares or debentures/
alteration or reduction of share capital/ conversion of shares/ securities and issue of security certificates in all instances;
9 keeping in abeyance the rights to dividend, rights shares and bonus shares pending registration of transfer of shares in
compliance with the provisions of the Act
10 declaration/ payment of dividend; transfer of unpaid/ unclaimed dividend/other amounts as applicable to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund in accordance with section 125 of the Act;
11 signing of audited financial statement as per the provisions of section  134 of the Act and report of directors is as per sub -
sections (3), (4) and (5) thereof;
12 constitution/ appointment/ re-appointments/ retirement/ filling up casual vacancies/ disclosures of the Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and the remuneration paid to them;
13 appointment/ reappointment/ filling up casual vacancies of auditors as per the provisions of section 139 of the Act;
14 approvals required to be taken from the Central Government, Tribunal, Regional Director, Registrar, Court or such other
authorities under the various provisions of the Act;
15 acceptance/ renewal/ repayment of deposits;
16 borrowings from its directors, members, public financial institutions, banks and others and creation/ modification/ satisfaction
of charges in that respect, wherever applicable;
17 loans and investments or guarantees given or providing of securities to other bodies corporate or persons falling under the
provisions of section 186 of the Act ;
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18 alteration of the provisions of the Memorandum and/ or Articles of Association of the Company;

To be digitally signed by

Name

Date (DD/MM/YYYY)

Place

   Fellow  Associate

Whether associate or fellow:

Certificate of practice number

XVI Declaration under Rule 9(4) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014

*(a) DIN/PAN/Membership number of Designated Person 00145586

*(b) Name of the Designated Person GRIGER CHERRY WILLIAMS

Declaration

I am authorised by the Board of Directors of the Company vide resolution number* 11 dated*

(DD/MM/YYYY) 08/09/2025 to sign this form and declare that all the requirements of Companies Act, 2013

and the rules made thereunder in respect of the subject matter of this form and matters incidental thereto have been complied
with. I further declare that:
1 Whatever is stated in this form and in the attachments thereto is true, correct and complete and no information material to the
subject matter of this form has been suppressed or concealed and is as per the original records maintained by the company.
2 All the required attachments have been completely and legibly attached to this form.

08291568DIN1
*To be digitally signed by

Director
 (Director /Liquidator/ Interim Resolution Professional (IRP)/Resolution Professional (RP))

*Designation

0*2*1*6**DIN of the Director; or PAN of the Interim Resolution
Professional (IRP) or Resolution Professional (RP) or Liquidator
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*To be digitally signed by 17732DIN2

  Company secretary in practice Company Secretary

   Fellow  Associate

*Whether associate or fellow:

Membership number

1*7*2Certificate of practice number

Note: Attention is drawn to provisions of Section 448 and 449 of the Companies Act, 2013 which provide for punishment for false
statement / certificate and punishment for false evidence respectively.

For office use only:

eForm Service request number (SRN) AB9146589

19/11/2025eForm filing date (DD/MM/YYYY)

This eForm has been taken on file maintained by the Registrar of Companies through electronic mode and on the basis of
statement of correctness given by the company



 
 
 

S M L FINANCE LIMITED 
EL/xv 652 KMC, Bethani Complex, Thrissur Road, Kunnamkulam, Thrissur, Kerala-680503 

CIN: U65910K11996P1C010648 
Email - smlkkm@gmail.com, Website - www.smlfinance.com 

Telephone No: 04885 -214000 
 
 

NOTICE OF THE 29TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
To 
 
All Members, Directors and Auditors 
 
Notice is hereby given that the 29th Annual General Meeting of the members of S M L FINANCE Limited 
will be held at the registered office of the company at EL/XV 652 KMC, Bethani Complex, Thrissur Road, 
Kunnamkulam, Thrissur, Kerala -680503 on Tuesday, 30th September 2025, at 05.00 P.M. to transact 
the following business: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 
 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet as of 31st March 2025 and Profit and Loss 
Statement and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended as on that date, together with Auditor’s Report 
and Directors Report thereon. 

 
2. To appoint a director in place of Smt. Susanna Issac (DIN: 03296118), who retires by rotation and being 

eligible offers herself for re-appointment. 
 

3. To appoint a director in place of Shri. Chungath Cheru Simon (DIN: 00074163), who retires by rotation 
and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 
 
SPECIAL BUSINESS 
 

4. Regularization of appointment of Shri. T P George (DIN: 11066574) as Independent Director. 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as a 
ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 149,152 and all other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act,2013, and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modifications 
or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) and the Articles of Association of the Company, 
Shri. T P George (DIN: 11066574), who was appointed as Independent Director of the company by the 
Board of Directors at its meeting held on 24th April 2025 and who ceases to hold office on the date of 
this Annual General Meeting as per section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, be and is hereby 
appointed as the Independent Director of the Company for a period of 5 years and the period of office 
of Shri. T P George shall not be subject to retirement by rotation”.  
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5.     Reappointment of Independent Director Mr. Abin M Behanan (DIN: 08712671) 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as a 
SPECIAL RESOLUTION: 

 
 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150 and 152 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, read along with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or 
re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) as amended from time to time, Mr. Abin M 
Behanan (DIN: 08712671) who was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for a term 
of five (5) consecutive years commencing from 31.12.2020 and whose term is expiring on 31.12.2025 
and who being eligible for re-appointment as an Independent Director and based on the 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of the 
Company, be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to 
retire by rotation, to hold office for a second term commencing from 01.01.2026 for a further term of 
five consecutive years. 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do 
all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, expedient and desirable for the purpose 
of giving effect to this resolution 

 
6.     Issue and allotment of Non-Convertible Debentures on private placement basis 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as a 
SPECIAL RESOLUTION: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 42, 71 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 
and the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 (including any amendment, 
modification, variation or re-enactment to any of the forgoing), and applicable circulars issued by 
Reserve Bank of India, and in compliance with other applicable rules, regulations and guidelines issued 
by any authority and  the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, 
approval of the  Members be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which term shall be deemed to include any Committee of the 
Board), for making offer(s) or invitation(s) to subscribe to secured/Unsecured redeemable Non-
Convertible Debentures (‘NCDs’), and allot NCDs on a private placement basis not exceeding the 
stipulated limit of subscribers in one or more tranches, for a period of one year, within the overall 
outstanding borrowing limits of the Company (hereinafter referred to as ‘Debenture issue’)”. 

 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, for the purpose of giving effect to the foregoing resolution, the Board of 
Directors be and is hereby authorized to determine the terms of the issue including the class of 
investors to whom such NCDs are to be issued, time, total amount to be raised by issuance of NCDs, 
NCDs to be offered, the number of NCDs, tranches, issue price, tenor, interest rate, premium/ 
discount, prepare offer letters, allotment of securities to successful allottees, to create securities in 
favour of one or more Trustees and to do all such acts, deeds, filings, matters and things and execute 
all such deeds, documents, instruments and writings as may be required, with powers on behalf of the 
Company, to settle all questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard as the Board of  
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
Directors may in its sole and absolute discretion deems fit and delegate all or any of its powers herein 
conferred to any Director(s) and/ or officer(s) of the Company, if required, as it may in its absolute 
discretion deem it necessary or desirable.” 

 For and on behalf of the Board of 
SML Finance Limited 

 
 

 Sd/- 
 
 
 
Date: 08/09/2025 
Place: Ernakulam  

Dr. Griger Cherry Williams 
Managing Director 

(DIN: 00145586) 
Address: Chungath House,  

Guruvayur Road P.O., Kunnamkulam 
 Thrissur, Kerala - 680503) 

 
 
 
 
Notes: 
 

 
1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and 

vote in a poll instead of himself and such proxy need not be a member of the Company. A person 
can act as a proxy on behalf of the members not exceeding 50 and holding in aggregate not more 
than 10% of the total share capital of the company. However, a member holding more than 10% of 
the total share capital of the company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy 
and such person shall not act as proxy for any other person or member. 
 

2. For appointing the proxy the enclosed proxy form duly filled, stamped and signed must be deposited 
at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the 
meeting. 
 

3. Members/Proxies should bring the Attendance Slip sent herewith, duly filled in and signed and hand 
over the same at the entrance of the hall for attending the meeting. 

 
4. Members are requested to notify immediately any change in their address including e-mail address to 

the Registered Office of the Company. 
 

5. Relevancy of question and the order of speakers will be decided by the Chairman. Members are 
requested to forward in writing to the Company any question on the Accounts, so as to reach the 
Registered Office one week before the date of the Annual General Meeting. 

 
6. The Explanatory Statement as per the Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial 

Standard 2, in respect of item no 4, 5 and 6 set out in the notice is annexed hereto. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
As per the requirement of Secretarial Standard 2, the following informaƟon relaƟng to the director 
to be re-appointed as contained in Item No. 2 and 3  

ParƟculars InformaƟon 

Name Susanna Isaac  Chungath Cheru Simon 

Age 38  62 

QualificaƟon GraduaƟon Under GraduaƟon 

Experience 

More than 14 years of 
Experience in NBFC 
business acƟviƟes and 
other related maƩers. 

28 years of experience of 
around in NBFC business 
acƟviƟes and other 
related maƩers 

Terms and condiƟons of appointment 
As per the ResoluƟon at 
Item No. 2 

As per the ResoluƟon at 
Item No. 3 

RemuneraƟon sought to be paid - - 

RemuneraƟon Last drawn - - 

Date of first appointment on Board 30/08/2010 05/11/1996 

Shareholding in the company 309 1198 

RelaƟonship with other Directors, 
Manager and other Key Managerial 
Personnel of the company 

Dr. Griger Cherry 
Williams (Husband) 

 

- 

 

Number of MeeƟngs of the Board 
aƩended during the year 

07/07  07/07 

Other Directorships, Membership/ 
Chairmanship of CommiƩees of other 
Boards 

• Vanchinad Finance 
Private Limited - 
Director 

• Sangeeth Nidhi 
Limited-Director 

• Ayur Bethaniya LLP-
Designated Partner 

• GSV Print and Paper 
LLP-Partner 

• Bethaniya Clinic LLP-
Partner 

• SML Finance Limited-
Director 

• B R D Motors Limited- 
Director 

• B R D Car World Limited- 
Director 

• BRD Chits Limited- 
Director 

• BRD Kuries (India) 
Limited- Director 

 B R D Finance Limited – 
Director 

 BRD SecuriƟes LTD – 
Director. 

 



 
 
 
STATEMENT TO BE ANNEXED PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013  
 
Item No. 4. Regularization of appointment of Shri. T P George as Independent Director 
Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Shri. T P George was 
appointed as an Additional Director (Independent Director) of the Company at the Board meeting held 
on 24.04.2025. As per Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 he will cease to hold office on the date 
of this Annual General Meeting. Considering his experience and ability and benefit which the Company 
can derive from the association with him, the board recommends his appointment as Independent 
director of the Company. Hence, this resolution is proposed. 
 
Profile of Shri. T P George 
 
Shri. T P George graduated with a Bachelor’s degree in Physics from the University of Kerala (B.Sc.). He 
took graduation in Law from Govt. Law College Ernakulam, University of Kerala (LL.B), later took post 
graduation in Law from Mahatma Gandhi University. He was University rank holder, with specialization 
in Law of Contracts (LL.M). 
34 years of experience in banking sector. He has worked with Federal Bank, Lord Krishna Bank, 
Centurion Bank and HDFC Bank. In the year 2010 started legal practice as an advocate. Presently, he 
is also serving as an accredited mediator. Shri. T P George has given a declaration to the Board that he 
meets the criteria of independence as provided under Section 149 (6) of the Act. 
 
As per section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, none of the directors of the Company are interested 
in the above resolution except Shri. T P George, being the proposed director. 
 
Item No: 5. Reappointment of Independent Director Mr. Abin M Behanan (DIN: 08712671) 
 
Mr. Abin M Behanan was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for a term of five (5) 
consecutive years commencing from 31.12.2020 and whose term is expiring on 31.12.2025 and who 
being eligible for re-appointment as an Independent Director and based on the recommendation of 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is 
hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for a second term commencing from 
01.01.2026. Hence, this resolution is proposed. 
 
Profile of Mr. Abin M Behanan 
 
Mr. Abin M Behanan is a qualified Chartered Accountant with 10 years of experience. He is one of the 
Partners of VJA & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Cochin. 
Mr. Abin M Behanan has given a declaration to the Board that he meets the criteria of independence 
as provided under Section 149 (6) of the Act. 
 
As per section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, none of the directors of the Company are interested 
in the above resolution except Mr. Abin M Behanan, being the proposed director. 
 
Item No.6.Issue and allotment of secured redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures on private 
placement basis 
 
Meaning, Scope and Implication of Item of business: 
“Private Placement" means any offer of securities or invitation to subscribe securities to a select group 
of persons by a company (other than by way of public offer) through issue of a private placement offer 
letter and which satisfies the conditions specified in section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013. As per 



Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules, to issue non-convertible debentures in an year, 
under private placement basis, special resolution needs to be passed by the members in their general 
meeting once in an year, authorizing the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as “the Board” 
which term shall be deemed to include any Committee of the Board) to make such issue in one or 
more series as per the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
As per the provisions of Section 42, 71 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and rules made thereunder, a company offering or making an invitation to subscribe secured 
redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) on a private placement basis is required to be 
obtained prior approval of members of the company by way of special resolution. Such special 
resolution would remain valid for a period of 01 (one) year from the date of passing such resolution, 
for all the offers or invitations for such NCDs to be made during the year. 
 
NCDs issued on private Placement basis constitute an alternative source of borrowing for the company 
other than traditional borrowings from banks and financial institutions. 
 
It is proposed to offer or invite subscription for NCDs on a private placement basis, in one or more 
tranches, within the overall outstanding borrowing limits of the company, as approved by the 
members, with an authority to the Board of Directors of the company (hereinafter referred to as “the 
Board” which term shall be deemed to include any Committee of the Board),to determine the terms 
and conditions including the issue price of the NCDs, interest rate, repayment, security or otherwise 
as it may deem expedient and do all such acts, deeds, matters and things in connection therewith and 
incidental thereto as the Board in its absolute discretion deems fit, without being required to seek any 
further consent, or approval of the members or otherwise to the end and intent that they shall be 
deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of the resolution. Accordingly, 
approval of the members is being sought by way of special resolution under section 42 and other 
applicable provisions, if any of the Act and its rules thereunder. 
 
The board accordingly recommends the special resolution for the approval of members. 
 
As required by section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 none of the Director, Manager, Key 
managerial personnel and relatives of such Director, Manager and Key Managerial Personnel is 
interested in the above resolution. 
 
The special business transacted at the meeting of the company does not relate to or affects any other 
company. So, disclosure pursuant to Sec 102(2) (b) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable. 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of 
SML Finance Limited 

 
 
 

 
                 Sd/- 

 
 
 
Date: 08/09/2025 
Place: Ernakulam  

Dr. Griger Cherry Williams 
Managing Director 

(DIN: 00145586) 
Address: Chungath House,  

Guruvayur Road P.O., Kunnamkulam 
 Thrissur, Kerala - 680503) 

 
 



SML FINANCE LIMITED 
Bethany Complex, Thrissur Road, Kunnamkulam, Thrissur Dist, - 680503 

CIN: U65910KL1996PLC010648 
Email – smlkkm@gmail.com 

Telephone No: 04885 – 214000  
 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 
To, 
The Members 
 
Your directors are pleased to present the 29th Annual Report on the business and operations of your 
Company together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025. 
 
1. FINANCIAL RESULTS             

                                                                                                                                          (In Rupees) 

 
The consolidated performance of S M L Finance Limited and its Wholly owned Subsidiary Vanchinad 
Finance Private Limited as per consolidated financial statements is as under: 

                                                                                                                       (In Rupees) 

Financial Highlights 
For the Year Ending 

31st March 2025 
(in Cr) 

For the Year Ending 
31st March 2024 

(in Cr) 
Total Income 87.55 97.86 
Total Expenditure (including Depreciation) 90.05 90.20 
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (2.50) 7.65 
Exceptional item - - 
Tax (including deferred tax and tax related to Prior years) 0.40 3.59 
Profit/(Loss) after tax & Exceptional Item (2.90) 4.05 
Earnings per share(Rs. in ‘000) Rs. (482.26) Rs.673.26 

 
2. PERFORMANCE REVIEW 
During the Financial Year, the Company has incurred a loss of Rs. 3.71 cr compared to last year’s loss of 
Rs. 0.66 cr. Total Income has decreased to Rs. 28.77 cr for the year ended March 31, 2025, as compared 
to the total income of Rs.40.73 for the year ended March 31, 2024. 
 
 
 
 
 

Financial Highlights 
For the Year Ending 

31st March 2025  
(in Cr) 

For the Year Ending 
31st March 2024 

(in Cr) 
Total Income 28.77 40.73 
Total Expenditure (including Depreciation) 32.66 41.04 
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (3.88) (0.31) 
Tax (including deferred tax and tax related to Prior years) (0.17) 0.35 
Profit/(Loss) after Tax  (3.71) (0.66) 
Earnings per share (Rs. in ‘000) Rs. (616.35) Rs. (110.13) 
Share Capital and Reserve & Surplus 50.78 54.50 
Total liabilities other than Share capital & Reserve 108.33 119.17 
Total Assets 159.11 173.67 
Loan Asset Portfolio 100.05 91.14 
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3. PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES 
Name of the Subsidiary Company: VANCHINAD FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED (Wholly Owned Subsidiary) 

(In Rupees) 

Financial Highlights 

For the Year Ending 
31st March 2025 (in Cr) 

For the Year Ending 
31st March 2024 (in Cr) 

Total Income 60.44 62.52 
Total Expenditure (including Depreciation) 59.06 50.56 
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 1.38 11.96 
Tax (including deferred tax) 5.75 3.23 
Profit/(Loss) after Tax 0.80 8.72 
Share Capital and Reserve & Surplus 43.32 42.51 
Total liabilities other than Share capital & Reserve 184.04 181.91 
Total Assets 227.36 224.43 
Loan Asset Portfolio 209.36 209.43 

 
4. DIVIDEND  
Since the company is into loss, Board is not recommending any Dividend on Equity Shares for the Financial 
Year. 
 
5. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY 
There is no change in the nature of Business during the Financial Year 2024-25. 
 
6. AMOUNTS TRANSFERRED TO RESERVES 
During the year under review, the company has not transferred any amount to reserves, since the 
company is into loss. 
 
7. CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR, IF ANY  
There was no change in the share capital of the company during the Financial Year 2024-25. As on date of 
this report, the Authorised share capital of the Company is Rs. 15,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifteen Crores Only) 
divided into 1,30,000 equity shares of Rs. 1000/- each and 20,000 preference shares of Rs.1000/- each. 
The issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company as on the date of this report is Rs. 
6,03,02,000/- (Rupees Six Crores Three Lakhs Two Thousand only) consisting of 60,302 equity shares of 
Rs. 1000/- each. 
 
8. DISCLOSURE REGARDING ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL RIGHTS 
The Company has not issued any equity shares with differential rights during the financial year. 
 
9. DISCLOSURE REGARDING ISSUE OF EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS 
The Company has not issued any employee stock options during the financial year. 
 
10. DISCLOSURE REGARDING ISSUE OF SWEAT EQUITY SHARES 
The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the financial year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
11. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 

AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE TILL THE DATE OF THIS REPORT 
There were no other material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the company 
after balance sheet date till the date of this report. 
 
12. DIRECTORS 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted and the present structure as on the date of this 
report is as follows: 

Sl. 
No. Name Designation Date of 

Appointment DIN 

Status-
Resident/

Non-
Resident 

Category-
Independent / 

Non-
Independent 

Executive / 
non-

executive 

1. Griger Cherry 
Williams 

Managing 
Director 30/09/2001 00145586 Resident Non-

Independent Executive 

2. Susanna Isaac Director 30/08/2010 03296118 Resident Non-
Independent 

Non-
Executive 

3. Chungath Cheru 
Simon Director 05/11/1996 00074163 Resident Non-

Independent 
Non-

Executive 

4. Jojo Joseph 
Njezhuvinkel Director 04/08/2016 07538990 Resident Non-

Independent 
Non-

Executive 

5. Kocheril Ittoop 
Varghese Director 06/11/2018 08291568 Resident Non-

Independent Executive 

6. Abin M Behanan Independent 
Director 03/03/2020 08712671 Resident Independent Non-

Executive 

7. T P George Independent
Director 24/04/2025 11066574 Resident Non-

Independent 
Non-

Executive 
 

In accordance with the Companies Act 2013, Smt. Susanna Isaac (DIN: 03296118) and Shri. Chungath 
Cheru Simon (DIN: 00074163) are liable to retire from office by rotation and are eligible for 
reappointment. 

The Board of directors of the Company express their deep condolences at the untimely and sad demise 
of late P. K. Thankarajan, Independent Director of the company, on 17th February, 2025. He was 
appointed as an independent director by the Board on 19/11/2022. To fill the casual vacancy raised 
due to the sad demise of late P. K. Thankarajan, Adv. T P George was appointed as an Independent 
Director with effect from 24th April, 2025. His appointment as an independent director is regularized 
in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.  
 
Mr. Abin M Behanan (DIN: 08712671) who was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company 
for a term of five (5) consecutive years commencing from 31.12.2020 and whose term is expiring on 
31.12.2025 and who being eligible for re-appointment and based on the recommendation of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company, hereby 
recommend to the shareholders’ re-appointment of Mr. Abin M Behanan as an Independent Director 
of the Company, to hold office for a second term commencing from 01.01.2026 for a further term of 
five consecutive years. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

13. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
The Company has complied with Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 with regard to appointment of 
Key Managerial Personnel. 
 
14. THE DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL WHO WERE APPOINTED OR HAVE 

RESIGNED DURING THE YEAR 
There has been change in the constitution of Board of Directors and Key managerial personnel during 
the year under review. 
 

Name of Director Position Date of 
Appointment/ 

Resignation 

DIN Appointment/ 
Resignation/ Change 

in Designation 
P K Thankarajan Independent 

Director 
17/02/2025 09770679 Cessation 

T P George Independent 
Director 

24/04/2025 11066574 Appointment 

 
15. NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS HELD AND THE DATE ON WHICH HELD 
The Board of Directors conducted seven Board meetings during the year. The dates on which the meetings 
were held are as follows: 

 
The maximum time gap between any two meetings was not more than 120 days. 
 
16. ATTENDANCE OF EACH DIRECTOR AT THE BOARD MEETINGS & LAST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING: 

 

 
Name of the Director 
 

Attendance particulars Shareholding in the 
Company (Face value of 

Rs. 1000/- each) Board meetings last AGM 
(30.09.2024) 

Equity Shares 
Chungath Cheru Simon 07/07 Present 1198 
Griger Cherry Williams 07/07 Present 17,311 
Susanna Isaac 07/07 Present 309 
Jojo Joseph Njezhuvinkel 06/07 Present - 
Kocheril Ittoop Varghese 07/07 Present - 
Abin M Behanan 07/07 Present - 
P K Thankarajan 06/07 Present - 

 
17. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS & STATEMENT OF DECLARATION 
The Company is covered under section 149 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 4 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 and have 2 independent Directors. The 
company has also obtained declaration of Independence from Independent Directors. 
 
18. WOMEN DIRECTOR 
The Company is not covered under rule 3 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) 
Rules, 2014 and hence it is not mandatory to appoint women director in the Board. However, company 
has women director in the Board. 
 
 

 i) 26.06.2024 ii) 17.08.2024     iii) 28.09.2024 iv) 21.12.2024 v) 13.01.2025 vi) 28.02.2025 vii) 12.03.2025 



 
 
19. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE & POLICY 
The company is covered under section 178 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 of the Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014. Nomination and Remuneration Committee consist of 
following members; 
 

1. CA Abin M Behanan - Chairman (Independent Director) 
2. Adv. T P George - Member (Independent Director) (w.e.f. 24.04.2025) 
3. Dr. Griger Cherry Williams - Member (Managing Director) 
4. Adv. P K Thankaraja – Member (Independent Director) (ceased w.e.f 17.02.2025) 

 
During the Financial Year, 2024-25, meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee was held on 
28/09/2024. 
 
20. DETAILS OF THE REMUNERATION PAID TO EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FOR THE YEAR 
The aggregate of remuneration paid to the executive Directors for the Financial 2024-25 were as follows; 
 

1. Dr. Griger Cherry Williams - Rs. 36,00,000/- 
 
 
21. REMUNERATION PAID TO NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 
The aggregate of salary and perquisites paid for the year ended 31st March 2025 to the Non- Executive 
Directors of the Company were as follows:  
 

1. Mr. Jojo Joseph Njezhuvinkel - Rs. 12,00,000/- 
 
22. AUDIT COMMITTEE 
The Company is covered under section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 of the Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014. Audit Committee of the Board consists of following 
members; 
 

1. CA Abin M Behanan -  Chairman (Independent Director) 
2. Adv. T P George               -  Member (Independent Director) 
3. Dr. Griger Cherry Williams  - Member (Managing Director) 
4. Adv. P K Thankaraja – Member (Independent Director) (ceased w.e.f 17.02.2025) 

 
During the Financial Year, 2024-25, meeting of Audit Committee was held on the following dates. 
 

i)26.06.2024 ii) 17.08.2024 iii) 28.09.2024 iv) 21.12.2024      v) 13.01.2025 

 
23. VIGIL MECHANISM 
The company is not required to constitute a vigil mechanism pursuant to the provision of section 177 (9) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder. 
 
24. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee with Mrs. Susanna Isaac as Chairperson, Dr. Griger Cherry Williams, 
Mr. K I Varghese, Mr. Shajan A.D and Mr. Tony K.F as members is formed as per Section 178 of the 
Companies Act 2013. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
  
The Committee reviews and redress the grievances of stakeholders of the company including the 
shareholders and investors complaints like transfer of shares, debentures, DEMAT related issues, non-
receipt of NCD interest, declared Dividends, etc., besides complaints from Court and various Investor 
forums. The Committee also oversees the performance of Registrar and Transfer Agents and recommend 
measures for overall improvement in the quality of investors’ services.  
 
During the year under review, there were no complaints received and there were no outstanding 
complaints as on 31st March 2025. No request for transfer was pending as on 31st March 2025. 
  
25. STATUTORY AUDITOR 
M/s. Balan & Co, Chartered Accountant (Firm registration no: 000340S), Aluva, was appointed as the 
Statutory Auditor of the Company for a period of 5 years from the conclusion of the Annual General 
Meeting held on 30.09.2024. 
 
26. AUDITORS REPORT 
The Report of the Auditors of the Company and notes to accounts are self-explanatory.   
 
27. COST AUDITORS 
The Company is not required to appoint Cost Auditor under section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
28. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS 
Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 
of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable to the Company. 
 
29. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
The Company is not covered under section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence not required to 
annex Secretarial Audit Report. 
 
30. DEPOSITS AND DEBENTURES 
The Company has not accepted any deposits from public during the year. The details of outstanding 
Debentures and Subordinated Debt are provided herewith; 
 
Total outstanding debentures as on 31.03.2025 was Rs. 37,78,83,000/- and total outstanding 
subordinated debt as on 31.03.2025 was Rs. 52,73,79,000/-. 
 
31. LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS. 
The Company has neither granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties 
nor made investment within the meaning of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there 
under during the FY 2024-25 except loan to wholly owned subsidiary and guarantee in respect of loan 
taken by wholly owned subsidiary, which exempted under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013.  
 
Details of total Loans and Advances, Guarantee and investments of the company are included in the 
Audited Financial Statements.  
 
 
32. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATES. 
During FY 2024-25, no company become or ceased to be Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associates of SML 
Finance Limited. 
 
 
 



 
 
As required under Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the consolidated financial statements of 
the Company along with its subsidiaries is placed before the Annual General Meeting of the Company 
along with the Financial Statements of the Company. 
 
Further as required under Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, a statement containing salient 
features of the financial statement of Company’s subsidiaries, associate companies and joint ventures are 
to be provided in Form AOC-1 and is set out as Annexure I attached hereto and forms part of this report. 
 
33. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
The Company had entered into related party transactions during the financial year 2024-25. As per Section 
134 (3) (h) of the Companies Act, 2013, the particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with related parties 
within the meaning of Section 188 is provided in the prescribed Form AOC-2 and forms part of this Report 
as Annexure II. 
 
34. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
The Company is not required to carry CSR activities during FY 2024-25. 
  
35. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
As required under Section 134(3A) of the Companies Act 2013, Annual Return under Section 92 in the 
prescribed form is published on the website of the company www.smlfinance.com . 
 
36. DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 
PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013. 
The Company has constituted Internal Complaints Committee and during the Financial Year, there were 
no cases reported or filed regarding sexual harassment of women at workplace. The Company has 
complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the 
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.   
 
37. FRAUD REPORTING  
During the Financial Year, there were no cases regarding fraud have been reported to the Board/Central 
Government. 
 
38. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR 
TRIBUNAL 
No order has been passed by the Regulators/Courts/Tribunal, which affects the going concern status or 
Company’s operations. 
 
39. VOLUNTARY REVISION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OR BOARD’S REPORT 
There was no voluntary revision of Financial Statements or Board’s Report in respect of preceding three 
financial years. 
 
40. STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL WITH REFERENCE TO 
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
The Company has adequate internal control and process on place with respective Financial Statements, 
which provides reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation 
of financial Statements. This controls and processes are driven through various policies, procedures and 
certification. The processes and controls are reviewed periodically. The Company has a mechanism of 
testing the controls at regular intervals for their design and operating effectiveness to ascertain the 
reliability and authenticity of financial information. 
 
 
 
 

http://www.smlfinance.com


 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Control with Reference to the Financial Statements included in the 
Auditor’s Report. 
 
 
41. FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION 
The Company is not covered under Section 134 (3) (p) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(4) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and hence the statement regarding manner adopted for formal annual 
evaluation is not mandatory. However, company is doing formal annual evaluation of Board of Directors 
and senior management. 
 
42. RISK MANAGEMENT 
The Company recognizes the importance of risk management and towards this end, the Board of Directors 
had approved and adopted Risk Management Policy (the ‘Policy’) for implementation of risk management 
strategy. The board also constituted a Risk Management Committee for reviewing the systems used to 
manage, identify and assess risks faced by the Company viz., credit risk, operational risk, liquidity risk, 
governance risk, interest rate risk etc. For each risks identified in the process, corresponding controls are 
assessed and procedures are put in place for monitoring, mitigating and reporting risk on a periodic basis. 
 
The following risk management activities were carried out during the financial year: 
 
A) Assessed and strengthened the Policy for further standardization of risk identification, 

 assessment and governance of risks across the Company. 
B) Assessment of business momentum relative to competition and competitive position in key market 

segments. 
C) Regularly assessed progress on the execution of strategic decisions, progress on the growth of software 

enabled services, impact of automation, performance of subsidiary businesses and operating cost 
optimization.  

D) Regularly assessed the business environment including trend line of key external indicators and 
internal business indicators such as client concentration. 

E) Reviewed key operational risks and actions based on inputs from external assessments, internal audit 
findings and incidents. Reviewed operational risk areas including client service delivery and 
information security. 

F) Monitored key developments in the regulatory environment and its impact in operations of the 
Company.  

 
43. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO 
Your company’s operations do not involve large-scale use of energy. The disclosure of particulars under 
this head is not applicable as your Company operates in the service sector. Although your company is not 
large-scale energy user, it acknowledges, the concept of conservation of energy. There were no foreign 
exchange earnings or outgo for the Company during the financial year. 
 
44. UNSECURED LOAN FROM DIRECTORS AND RELATIVES 
During the Financial year 2024-25, the Company has accepted unsecured loans from directors and their 
relatives. The Company had also obtained declarations from them, at the time of accepting money, 
specifying that the amount lend by them was not the fund acquired by borrowing or accepting loan or 
deposit from others.  Details are given below: 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Name of the 
Director/ Relative 
of Director 

Loan outstanding 
as on 31.03.2024 

Loan Accepted 
During the FY 
2024-25 

Loan Repaid 
During FY 2024-25 

Loan outstanding 
as on 31.03.2025 

C C WILLIAM 
VARGHESE 0 1,27,31,600 1,27,31,600 0 

SUSANNA GRIGER 27,31,000 10,49,000 0 37,80,000 

 
45. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
 
In compliance to the provisions of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 your Directors wish to 
confirm that: 
 

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been 
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures: 

 
(ii) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the 
profit and loss of the company for that period; 

 
(iii) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the 
assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;  
 

(iv) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 
 

(v) The directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such system were adequate and operating effectively. 

 
46. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 
Your directors wish to confirm that the applicable secretarial standards have been complied by the 
Company. 
 
47. RBI GUIDELINES 
Your Company has complied with all the applicable regulations prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India 
from time to time.  
 
48. PROCEEDINGS PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE,2016 
There was no application made or proceeding pending against the Company under the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year under review. 
 
49. DIFFERENCE IN VALUATION 
The Company has not made any one-time settlement for loans taken from the Banks or Financial 
Institutions, and hence the details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of 
one-time settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions 
along with the reasons thereof is not applicable. 
 
50. MATERNITY BENEFIT: 
The Company affirms that it has duly complied with all provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, and 
has extended all statutory benefits to eligible women employees during the year. 
 
 
 



 
51. APPRECIATION 
We take this opportunity to thank all regulators including the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Reserve Bank 
of India, Registrar of Companies, Income Tax and GST authorities etc for their valuable guidelines and 
advises for the corporate compliance, social responsibility and growth of the company.   We also thank all 
the employees for their contribution to the growth and success of your Company. We would also like to 
thank our customers, bankers, shareholders, Investors, debenture holders, Debenture Trustees and 
business associates for their support during the fiscal 
 
 
 

For and on behalf of the Board of 
SML FINANCE LIMITED 

 
 
 

           Sd/-     Sd/- 
Griger Cherry Williams  
Managing Director 
(DIN: 00145586) 
Address: Chungath House, Guruvayur Road P.O., 
Kunnamkulam Thrissur, Kerala - 680503) 

Kocheril Ittoop Varghese  
Director 

(DIN: 08291568) 
Address: Flat No. West 127 Federal Park,  

Vennala, Ernakulam, Kerala - 682028) 

 
 
 
Place: Ernakulam 
Date: 08/09/2025 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
Annexure - 1 

Form AOC-1 
 
 

(Pursuant to first provision to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014) 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associate companies or 
joint ventures 

 
Part “A”: Subsidiaries 

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs. and Cr) 
 

Sl. No. Particulars Details 
1 Name of the subsidiary VANCHINAD FINANCE PRIVATE 

LIMITED 
 The date since when subsidiary was acquired 31.05.2016 
 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different 

from the holding company’s reporting period 
N.A 

 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of 
the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries 

N.A 

 Share capital 25.00 
 Reserves & surplus 18.32 
 Total assets 227.36 
 Total Liabilities 227.36 
 Investments 0 
 Turnover 58.26 
 Profit before taxation 1.38 
 Provision for taxation / deferred tax 0.57 
 Profit after taxation 0.80 
 Proposed Dividend Nil 
 % of shareholding 100% 

 
For and on behalf of the Board of 

SML FINANCE LIMITED 
 
 

 
           Sd/- 
Griger Cherry Williams  
Managing Director 
(DIN: 00145586) 
Address: Chungath House, Guruvayur Road P.O., 
Kunnamkulam Thrissur, Kerala - 680503) 

                                                   Sd/- 
Kocheril Ittoop Varghese  

Director 
(DIN: 08291568) 

Address: Flat No. West 127 Federal Park,  
Vennala, Ernakulam, Kerala - 682028) 

 
 
Place: Ernakulam 
Date: 08/09/2025 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
Form No. AOC -2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014) 

 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length 
transaction under third proviso thereto 
 
Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis 

Sl. No: 
1 Particulars Details 

a) Name of the related party & nature of 
relationship 

C C William Varghese 
Father of Managing Director  

b) Nature of 
contracts/arrangements/transaction Rent  

c) Duration of the 
contracts/arrangements/transaction Rent agreement  

d) 
Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transaction including the 
value, if any 

Rs. 37,14,000/- 

e) Date of approval by the Board 21.05.2018 

f) Amount paid as advances, if any Nil 

 
 

Sl. No: 
2 Particulars Details 

a) Name of the related party & nature of relationship 
BRD Car World Limited  
(Directors of the company are 
related)  

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Rent  

c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction 
 

Rent agreement dated 01.11.2024 
for a period of 11 months. 

d) 
Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transaction including the value, if any 
 

Rs. 5,47,930 /- 

e) Date of approval by the Board 
 28.09.2023 

f) Amount paid as advances, if any 
 Nil 

For and on behalf of the Board of 
SML FINANCE LIMITED 

         Sd/- 
Griger Cherry Williams  
Managing Director 
(DIN: 00145586) 
Address: Chungath House, Guruvayur Road P.O., 
Kunnamkulam Thrissur, Kerala - 680503) 

                                                      Sd/- 
Kocheril Ittoop Varghese  

Director 
(DIN: 08291568) 

Address: Flat No. West 127 Federal Park,  
Vennala, Ernakulam, Kerala - 682028) 

Place: Ernakulam 
Date: 08/09/2025 



lndependent Auditor/s Report

To the Members SML Finance limited

Report on the Audit of the consoridated Financiar statements

Opinion

we have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of sML Finance Limited (,,the company',) and itssubsidiaries (the company and its subsidiaries together referred to as the "Group,,) which comprise the consolidated Batancesheet as at March 31, x025, and the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss and the consolidated statement of cash Flowsfor the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and otherexplanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the "Consolidated Financialstateme-nts,,;.

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consotidatedFinancial statements give the information required by the compinies Act, 2013 (the ,A;,) 
in the manner so required and givea true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principlei generally accepted in lndia, of the consolidated state of affairsof the Group as at March 3L,2025 and their consolidated ioss ino their consotidated cash flows for the year ended on thatdate.

Basis for Opinion

we conducted our audit of the consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with standards on Auditing (sAs) specifiedunder section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in theAudito/s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Financiat statements section of our report. we are independent ofthe Group in accordance with the code of Ethics issued by the lnstitute of chartered Accountants of lndia (,lcAr,) together withthe ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated Financial statements under the provisions of thecompanies Act, 2013 and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and thelcAl's code of Ethics' we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis forour opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Emphasis of matter

Regarding non availability of confirmations in respect of debit and/or credit balances of Loans, Advances, Deposits and current
Liabilities' In the absence of such confirmations, any provision to be made for the adverse variation in carrying of amounts ofthese balances, cannot be quantified, as well as the quantum of adjustment if any, required to be made remains unascertained.(Refer Note No 2.v)

Our opinion is not modified respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters tha! in our professionat judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated Financialstatements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters' we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in ourreport.

audit matter
Assessment of Contingent tiabitity

There are a number of litigations pending before various forums against the Company and the management,s judgement
is required for estirnating the amount to be disctosed as contingent liability.

We determined the above area as a Key Audit Matter in view of associated uncertainty relating to the outcome of these
matters which requires application of judgment in interpretation of law. Accordingly, our audit was focused on anatyzing
the facts of subject matter under consideration and judgments/ interpretation of law involved.

(Refer Note 3.28 to the Consolidated Financial Statements)



Audito/s

Principal Audit lrocedures Performed

The audit proce{ures included but were not limited to:

o Obtainirig a detailed understandint processes and controts of the Management with respect to ctaims or disputes
- Perfor{ring following procedures on samples setected.

o Understf nding the matterc by reading the correspondence and communications etc.

o Making forroborative inquiries with appropriate level of the management perconnet lnctuding status updatg
expectalion of the outcomes with the basis, and the future course of action contemplated by the Group, and
perusin! legal opinions, if any, obtained by the management.

o Evaluatit]tg tne evidence supporting the judgement of the management about possible outcomes and the
reasona$leness of the estimates.

o Evaluati4S appropriateness of adequate disclosures in accordance with applicable accounting standards.

lnformation other than the Financial statements and Auditorrs Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the Consolidated Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon.
The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor/s report.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we wilt not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or othenrise appears to be materially
misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible forthe matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act")
with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated Financla! Statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; setection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material mlsstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used
for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements by the Directors of the Company, as aforesaid.

ln preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Boards of Directors of the entities included in the Group are
responsible for assessing the ability of the respective entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends
to liquidate their respective entities or to cease operations, or has no realistic ahernative but to do so.

The respective Boards of Directors of the entities included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the financial
reporting process of the Group.



' Audltor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Financlat statements
our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consoridated Financiar statements as a whore are free
from material misstatement' whether-due to f;;r;;;#;, and to irru" 

"n 
.rJitor,s report that inciudes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high tevet of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with sAs wi,always detect a material missiatemeni-*t'", it existr rvira-*Jr"r,, can arise from fraud or error and are considered materiarllJt1lllll,I"f ijffiff1.m.*jl:i:d'';;ffi #ll*o", to inruence th" 
".o,o,ic decisions or users taken on

ff"':f,i:ilJ:[],',' 
accordance with sAs' we exercise professionatjudgment and maintain professionatskepticism throughout

r ldentifo and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consoridated Financiat statements, whether due to fraud orerror' design and perform audit procedures responslve to those risk, .na oiirin audit evidence that is sufficient andappropriate to provide a basis for our opinion' The risk of not detecting a ,.t"ri.t misstatement resurting from fraud is:lti"J:[[f::H#]::::l;:l."""t as rraud mav invorve conusion, rlre"ry, iit"ntionaromissions, misrepresentations,

' obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriatein the circumstances' under section 
l1sprct of the compani"s Act, 2013, *"ir" also responsibte for expressing ouropinion on whether the company and its'subsial.w ."rplny which .r" .orp.ni"s incorporated in lndia, has adequateinternalfinancial controts with reierence to consotidated Financiar statements in ptace and the operating effectiveness ofsuch controls.

' 
5l,1,:ff"t*][:ffi:tlffiofaccounting policies used and the reasonabreness of accounting estimates and rerated

o conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the auditevidence obtained' whether a material ,n."rt.inty exists reLted to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt onthe Group to contlnue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a materiar ,i."rt"in,y exists, we are required to drawattention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consotiaateJ riiaiciar statements or, if such discrosuresare inadequate' to modify our opinion. our conclusions are based on the audit 
"ria"n." 

obtained up to the date of ourauditor's report' However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Financial statements, including thedisclosures' and whether the consolidated Financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in amanner that achieves fair presentation.

' :flil1'Jffi1'J:fl::;,;j#l;H:|;T:;*Tlr "e 
financiar information of the entities within the Group to express

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated Financiatstatements that, individuaily or in aggregate, makesit probable that the economic decisions of a re.asonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated Financial sta6ments may beinfluenced' we consider quantitative materiality and qualitatirJf..torc in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and inevaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any ioentiiLo missta-tements in the consolidated FinanciatStatements.

we communicate with those charged with Sovernance of the company and such other entities included in the consolidatedFinancialstatements of which we are the independent audiiili"grraing, among other matters, the pranned scope and timingof the audit and significant audit findings, including any significari o"R.ier.les in internal control that we identify during ouraudit.

we also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirementsregarding independence, and to communicate with them atl relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thoughtto bear on our independence, and where appricabre rerated sGr.rur.
From the matters communicated with those charged with tovernance, we determine those matters that were of mostsignificance in the audit of the financial statements of the .rrrJnt period and are therefore the key audit matters. we describethese matters in our audito/s report unless law or regulation precludes public disctosure about the matter or when, inextremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverseconsequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.



Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a' we have sought and obtained atl the information and exptanations which to the best of our knowredge and berief werenecessary for the purposes of our audit of the consoriaaieJ Financiat statements.

b' tn our opinion' proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidatedFinancialstatementshavebeenkeptbytheGroupr.;;;;l 
appearsfromouiexaminationofthosebookexceptfor

the matters stated in the paragraph r (i)(vi) uelow'on rep*irg under Rule u(g) of the companies (Audit and Auditors)Rules 2014;

c' The consolidated Batance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and Loss and the consoridated cash Frowstatement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the retevant uoors oi account maintained for the purposeof preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

d' ln our opinion' the aforesaid consotidated Financial statements comply with the Accounting standards specified underSection 133 of the Act, read with Rure 7 of the companies (eccounts) Rutes, 2014.

e' on the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Group as on 31st March, 2025 taken onrecord by the Board of Directors of the Group, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from beingappointed as a director in terms of Section til(Zl of the Act.

f' with respect to the adequary of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Financial statements ofthe Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in ,Annexure ff attachedherewith' our report expresses a modified opinion on the adequary and operating effectiveness of internal financialcontrols with reference to consolidated financial statements of those companies.

8' with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance w1h the requirements of section197(15) of the Act' as amended' !n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations

$'r"JJiJtfl"Jrtfi:l:ation 
paid bv the companv to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions

h' The modification retating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in theparagraph 1 (b) above on reporting under section 1a3(3Xb) and paragraph 1 (i) (vi) uelow on reporting under Rute11(e).

i' with respect to the other matters to be inctuded in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the companies(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to theexplanations given to us:

i' The consolidated Financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated financialposition of the Group -Refer Note 3.28 to the consolidited financiat statements.

ii' The Group was not required to recognize a provision as at March 3L,2ozsunder the applicabte law or accountingstandards' as it does not have any material foreseeable losses on rnt-i"r, contract inctuding derivativecontracts;

iii' There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the lnvestor Education and protection Fund bythe Group during the year ended March 3t,ZO2S.

iv' (a) The respective Managements of the company and its subsidiaries have represented that, to the best of theirknowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or sharepremium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company or any oi such subsidiaries to or in any otherperson or entities, including foreign entities ("lntermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded inwriting or othenrise, that the tntermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other personsor entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the comfany or any of such subsidiaries("Uttimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Uhimate Beneficiarles.



- (b) The respective Managements of the company and its subsidiaries have represented that, to the best of itsknowledge and belief' nJfunds r,.r" u"li ,";:il; oy th9 g"il;;;;; aiy or rucr, subsidiaries from any personor entity' including foreign entities ("runoine pailr,;;, *ith th;;"1;;r;;nding; whether recorded in writing orothen'vise' that the comlanv or any of suctisubsidiaiies rr,.ii, 
"i"ii"r,iir"arv or indirectry, rend or invest inother persons or entities identified in ,ny ,.ii", *r,.tsoevei uv oi'oi'u"r,ar of the Funding party (,,uhimateBeneficiaries") or provide any Euarantee, security or the like 

", 
u"r,.ir 

"itire 
Urtimate Beneficiaries ; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered re.asonabre and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing
:il rffiltJlHHt*l has caused us to believe that the ,"pr"r"ni*iJns under sub-ctause (a) and (b) contain

v' 
][ftS:fl1il[:t^t5!!.ot ntia anv dividend duringthe vear in contravention orthe provisions of section 123

vi' Based on-our examination, which included test checl*, the. company and its subsidiary has used accountingsoftware for maintaining its bools of account roi il," tn.n.i.l v..r lnalJ utarctr 3t,zozswhich has a feature ofrecording audit trail (edit log) facility and the r.ri'r,., operated throughout the year for arr rerevant transactionsrecorded in the software' except in-the case otrripeiy elant and eqripir"iiregister maintained in a spreadsheetutiritv, for which no audit traitiacirity r,.i u".i *'riir"n,"o.
In case of the Holding company, the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the
1fi1il1':J::1;:,ffi;l 

direct changes ror the ac.orntlne software used ror maintainins the boors of account

Further' during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trair feature being
::l?::1#l:"1'o 

the audit trail has u""n p*r"."d by the .orp"nv., per the statutory requirements for

2' with respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(rui) and_4 of the companies (Auditor,s Report) order, 2020 (the"ordef f"CARo") issued by the centrat Government in terms of section 143(1i) orir," e.t, to be inctuded in the Auditor,sreport' according to the information and exptanations given to us, and based on the Auditorrs Reports on the financialstatements of company and its subsidiaries as at and rliii.-v.., ended March g!,2ozl,included in the consolidatedFinanclal statements of the Group, we have not reported any quatifications or adverse remarks .

For Balan & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
lCAl Firm registration number: OOO34OS

Place: Aluva
Date:09.09.2025

I
4ra,-u*

P. Mohand/s FCA
Partner gl.no.oztzezl
UDIN: 25'0212G2BMHZUR1389



"Annexure A" To the lndependent Auditol's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other legat and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report to the

Memberc of SMI Finance Umited of even date)

Report on the lnternal Financiat Controls with reference to Consolidated Financia! Statements under Clause (i) of sub-section

3 of Seetion 143 of the Companies Act,2013 (the "Act'')

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Financial statements of the company as of and for the year ended March 31,

2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements of SML Finance

Limited (the Company'') and its subsidiary companies, as of that date'

Management's Responsibility for lnterna! Financial Controls

The respective company's management and Boards of Directors of the Company and its subsidiary companies are responsible

for estiblishing and maintainin! internat financial controts based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria

established by the Company coniidering the essential components of internal controt stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of

tnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia' These

responsibitities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were

operating effectively for ensuringlhe orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies,

the safeiuarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the

accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013'

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internalfinancialcontrols with reference to Consolidated Financialstatements

of the company and its subsidiary companies based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance

Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing

issued by lCAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an

audit of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements. Those Standards and the Guidance

Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements was established and

maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with

reference to consolidated Financial statements and their operating effectiveness. our audit of internal financial controls over

financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internalfinancial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk

that a materialweakness exists, and testing and evaluaiing the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on

the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the iudito/s judgement, inctudingthe assessment of the risk of material

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on

the internal financiat controls with reference to consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiary

companies.

Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company,s internalfinancial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding

the reliability of financial reporting and the pr"p.r.iion of financial statements for externat purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principtes. A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated Financial

Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance

that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with

authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or

timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on

the fi nancial statements.



lnherent umitations of rnternat Financiar controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of co[usionor improper management override of controts, material misstatements due to error or iraud may occur and not be detected.Alsq projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Financial statements maybecome inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures maydeteriorate.

Opinion

According to information's and explanations given to us the following materia! weakness has been identified as at March 31,2025:

The company's ERP is not capable of calculating the NPA provisions along with automatic adjustment of interest reversal asmandated by RBr prudential norms and it requires manual intervention.

A "Material weakness" is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial controt over financia! reporting,such that there is a reasonable possibility that a materiat misstatement of the company's annual financial statements will notbe prevented or detected on a timely basis.

ln our opinion, except to the possible effect of material weakness described above in which case we have extended our auditprocedures to cover, the company and its subsidiary companies have maintained in alt material respects, adequate internatfinancial control system with reference to consolidated Financial statements were operating effectively as on March 2025,based on the criteria for internat financial control with reference to consolidated Financial statements established by therespective companies considering the essentiat components of internal controt stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternalFinancial controls over Financiar Reporting issued by the rcAr.

Place: Aluva
Date:08.09.2025

For Balan & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
lCAl Firm registration number: OOO34OS
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P. Mohand/s FCA
Partner (M.No.0212G2)

UDIN: 250212628MH2UR1389
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lndependent Auditorrs Report

To the Members SML Flnance llmlted

Report on the Audlt of ihe Flnanclal Statements

Oplnlon

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of SML Finance Limited ("the Companf), which comprise the
balance sheet as at March 31,2025, and the statement of Profit and Loss and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone financia!

statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act') in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31st,
2025 and loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinlon

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)

of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics

issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in

accordance with these requirements and the lCAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasls of matter

Regarding non availability of confirmations in respect of debit and/or credit balances of Loans, Advances, Deposits and Current

Liabilities. ln the absence of such confirmations, any provision to be made for the adverse variation in carrying of amounts of these

balances, cannot be quantified, as well as the quantum of adjustment if any, required to be made remains unascertained. (Refer Note

No 2.u)

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial

statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole,

and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters

described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

audlt matter

Assessment or Contlngent Uabllaty
There are a number of litigations pending before various forums against the Company and the management's judgement is
required for estirnating the amount to be disclosed as contingent liability.

We determined the above area as a Key Audit Matter in view of associated uncertainty relating to the outcome of these matters

which requires application of judgment in interpretation of law. Accordingly, our audit was focused on analyzing the facts of
subject matter under consideration and judgments/ interpretation of law involved.

Note 3.28 to the Standalone financial statemen

Audito/s

Prlnclpa! Audlt Prfocedures Performed
The audit proce{ures included but were not limited to

. ObtaininE a detailed understanding processes and controls of the Management with respect to claims or disputes -

Performlng following procedures on samples selected.

the matters the and communications etc.



. Making Corroborative inquiries with appropriate level of the management personnel including status update,
expectation of the outcomes with the basis, and the future course of action contemplated by the company, and
perusing legal opinions, if any, obtained by the management.

r EvaluatinB the evidence supporting the judgement of the management about possible outcomes and the
reasonableness of the estimates.

o Evaluating appropriateness of adequate disclosures in accordance with applicable accounting standards.

lnformation Other than the Standalone Financlal Statements and Audltot/s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included

in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Annual Report is expected
to be made available to us after the date of this auditorrs report.

Our opinion on the Standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it
becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements

or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the
matter to those charged with governance under SA 720 The Auditol's responsibilities Relating to Other lnformation'.

Responslbllities of Management and Those Charged wlth Governance for the Standalone Flnanclal Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance

and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, including the accounting

Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and

other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable

and prudenq and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively

for ensuring the accuracy and completeness ofthe accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation ofthe financial

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going

concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board

of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process.

Auditol's Responslblllties for the Audit of the Flnanclal Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditol's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a

high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professionaljudgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the

audit. We also:

. ldentlfo and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

ior our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, lbrgery intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 1a3(3Xi) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness ofsuch controls.



' 
;;:'Jii",*"r:!propriateness 

of accountinS policies used and the reasonabteness of accountinS estimates and retated disctosures

' conclude on the appropriateness of management's use ofthe going concern basis ofaccounting and, based on the audit evidenceobtained' whethera materiat uncertainty exists related to 
"r"ii, or.conditions that maf cast significant doubt on the company'sability to continue as a going concern' lf we conclude that a materiat ,n."rt.inty 

"ri;lr,;" are required to draw attention in ouraudito/s report to the related disclosures in the financi.rrt.t"."nts or, if such discrosures are inadequatg to modify our opinion.our conclusions are based on the audit evidence outaineJupio tr,. date of orr.riitor, report. However, future events orconditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether thefinancial statements represent the underlying transactions aiJerent, in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregatg makes itprobable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledge.ur" ,r", or the financiar ,t.t"r"rt, may be influenced. we consider
ffifilii:ifr11"J'fl'y"l[:,Tffi',;:ff':J';[lltrufm1*ii.t"ru,:l;";*i'lio,, evaruaiingtrre resurtsorourwork;

we communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the pranned scope and timing of the auditand significant audit findlngs, including any Iignificant defiIiencief in internar controrthai we rdentifo during our audit.
we also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have compried with rerevant ethicar requirements regarding;ll:ffi3:ff3:li;il:$ilHl[::1:,*"3;[*['1"'"tr' ,,, "ner 

matter; il ;; reasonab,v be thought to bear on oui

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance inthe audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the t"v .raii ,itters. we describe these matters in ouraudito/s report unless law or regulation prectudes public aisctosure auout the matter or when, in extremery rare circumstances, we
ff:T#l::ll.:"ffiH;,jH,lX;lJ il:::J,g,$l:i*il::H[f,T:ij:d;;il,J,.]n!=.ou"nces ordoing so wou,d reasonab,y

Report on Other legaland Regulatory Requlrements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a' 
[:j!]}',|l*;lffi:ll]Hl'#.:rormation and explanations which to the best or our knowredge and berier were

b' ln our opinion' proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so far as it appears from our
ffi:trHl,:j,tffii ll:f,"ff:'"lH,I"rfff:"o *'i"J in iie parasraph 1 (i)(vi) berow on reporting uniJ, nurc uk) or

c' 
ffiffiffirt-::;i:hTi.ttment 

of Profit and Loss and the cash Ftow statement deatt with by this Report are in agreement

d' ln our opinion' the aforesaid standalone financialstatements comply with the Accounting standards specified under Section133 0f the Act, read with Rure 7 0f the companies (Accounts) iures, 2014.

e' on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2025 taken on record by the Boardof Directors' none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms ofsection 164(2) of the Act. -- - I r r-i v' r' -vGs " vr Ms[ 16r

f' with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls-over financial reporting of the company and the operatingeffectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in ,,Annexure A, attached herewith.

8' with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of Section197(16) of the Act' as amended' ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations givento us' the remuneration paid by the company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section197 ofthe Act.

h' The modification retating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in theparagraph 1 (b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 1 (i) (vi) betow on reporting under Rule tl(g).



i' with respect to the other matters to be. included in the Auditor's Report in accordancewith Rute 11 of the companies (Audit;.ltfiiff) Rures' 2o14 (as 
"'"ia"a), i" ;;;;pi;;;;il ffi" uiot oiorillilffi,on and according to the expranations

i. The Company has disclosed the in
Note 3.2i to the standa;;;;r;Hi.Tr.::pending.litigations on its financiat position in its financiarstatements -Refer

ii' The company.was not required to recognize a provision as at March 3r, zozsunder the applicable law or accountingstandards' as it does not have any material foreseeable tosses on rong-term contiact incruding derivative contracts;iii' 
I:ffiffT,?il1[T:,T::"ffi;fi1y;1;." transrerred to the Investor Education and protection Fund bythe

iv' (a) rne managem€nt has represented that, to the best of its knowtedge and belief, as disclosed in the notes to theaccounts' no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either ri", o"ir"*ed funds or share premium or anyother sources or kind of funds) by the companf io ;;1, any other person or entities, incruding foreign entities("lntermed[aries")' with the understanding whether recorded in writing 
"i i,r,"*ir", that the rniermediary shart,whether' directly or indirectty, lend or invest in o*,", p"irons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on

|:[ff::l]:companv("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") orfrlriJ; rnvguarantes securityorthe rikeon beharf of the Urtimate

(b) The mana-Sement has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the notes to theaccounts' no funds have been received by trre companv tio, .ny person or entity, incruding foreign entities (,FundingParties")' with the understanding, whether r..ora.i in'*ri ing oi othenrrir.,ir,li'it 
" 

company shar, whether, directryor indirectly' lend or invest in oihe, persons or entities identified in .ny ,"ii"i'*r,rt o"rer by or on beharf of the
5:|!ff.::gl"Ultimate 

Beneficiaries"l o, proria"-.nvlr.r.n,ee, security or the tike on behatf of the Uttimate

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonabre and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has;ffii;ilrfi:;""n:t has caused us to believe *'ri ii" r"presentations under sub-ctause (a) and (b) contain any

v' 
]h:[ffiXj::ffi*ffred or paid anv dividend during the vear in contravention of the provisions of section 123

vi' Based on our examination' which included test checks, the company has used accounting software for maintaining itsbook of account for the financial year ended March it, zozs wtrictr has a feature of recording audit trait ( edit log)facility and the same has operatedihroughout the year ioi .tt ,"t"r.nt tr.nr.aio* recorded in the software, exceptin the case of Property Plant and equipment registeimaintrii"a ln a spreadsh""i ,tilitv, for which no audit trail facilityhas been imptemented' Further, during the course or ou, auait we did not come ..io* any instance of the audit trail
f:ffif'ffj|Hr:t" with and the audit trait has u""n prerered by the.orp.nf ., per the statutory requirements

As required by the compa.nies (Auditor's Report) order, 2o2o ("the order'), issued by the centrar Government of rndia in terms
iJ;:ff#;l j111":l:it"J;11;iffi:"Jl"il1;i*i*1" il;; the ,,Annexure a, a itatement on the matters specined

For Balan & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 0003405

Place: Aluva
Date:08.09.2025
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'?nnexure A,, To the lndependent Auditor,s Report

:l:ffiillon:: l,ffi,tJ:?"'J3rTfi-ieport 
on other regar and Reguratory Resuirements,section or our report to the Members

Report on the lnternal Financial controts with reference to standarone Financiats Statesection 143 of the companies ect, zoi3t (1,e ,?ct,,) dalone Financials Statements under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of

,Y:;ffilJ:xil,.f:l1H:fl:iilff::;t:[ffi,H:;:'"1i#::'J;ilJ:#ii:H:":ffi":J;H::[:any,,)as.rMarch 
3,,202s

Management,s Responsibility for tnternal Financial Controls

The company's management is responsilcle for establishing and maintaining internar financiar contrors based on the internar control
over financial reporting criteria established by the -il;;;;;ria"ring ttre esseniiai'.o-rponunt, of internar contror stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal rina'Jar controls or"r'rN.ri,rr Reporting ,rrr"l i, the rnstitute of chartered Accountants of
lndia' These responsibilities include the clesign, implementat;;; rrin,.nrn." oiloJorr,u internarfinanciarcontrors that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orrJerly and efficient ."rrr., of its businesr, i.r.tr-jing adherence to company,s poricies, the::Ilil1,.:tr,ilxLiii",T"Jni,::?5:i:i,l,Ti*,':;,"",'J:iffi 

:tH[*: J:i;r[::*;:i:r,T,"i: .r ,re acc.un, ng

Auditors, Responsibility

our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls over.financial reporting based on our audit.
we conducted our audit in accordance wirtr tne Guidance Notu on nrait of rnternar rinanciar Contrors over Fin-anciar Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on e'litlng, issued by rcAt anJ deemed to be prescribJd ,nd"r r".tion 143(10) of the companies
Act' 2013' to the extent applicable to an a,dit of internar nn.n.J.r .lntrols, both appricabre to an audit of rnternar Financiar contrors
and' both issued by the lnstitute or crrarterea Accountants or rno-ia. rnose standards .ni,i" Guidance Note require that we compry
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabre assurance about whether adequate internar financiar
controls over financial reporting was established and 

',in,.in"J .nd if such controts ope-'rlteo efrectivery in a, materiar respects.
our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internar financiar contrors system over
financial reporting and their operating tfrttti"n""' our audit of internar financiar contrors over rinanciar reporting incruded obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls.over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a materiar weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internar .oni-r based on ttre assesseo risk. The procedures serected depend
on the auditor's judgement' including the assessment of the risks of materiar misstatement of the financiar statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

ffi:",I',',:,:1::in,iliH:::i,::,T,1:;i##:X;,;:l;:il[nd appropriate to provide a basis ror our audit opinion on the

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonabre assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financiar statements for externar fr.oor", in accordance with generary
accepted accounting principles' A company's internal financial contror over financiat ,.eportiniincrudes those poricies and proceduresthat (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonabre a"trit, ,..rrrtery and rririv'r"n"a the transactions and dispositionsofthe assets ofthe company; (2) provide reasonable assurance ahr,,r.nrr.aions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of

Hi;ff:'#'ffi?,'::#;ff:"1'xf",:;:m,'""1xffi:;:';'.1ffx';,',.:lj,y#;;::,,.,andexpendi,,,",or,nucompanv
;::HTilT:i:ff.?:T[ilil:fi:[[T-.aion or una,,n;;;;.";.:;uisition, use, or 0,,*,1,T,1?r" .HJ:#:::,,1if;:::::l;
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and explanations given to us the following material weakness has been identified as at 3Lst March 2025:

fi?'""oTr'il1Ijj[i 11,".];*i:X:isions 
along with automatic adjustment orinterest reversar as mandated

;lency' or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financiar control over financiar reporting, such thatthat a materiar misstatement of the ;rp;;;;; annuar financiar ,t.t"r"nt, wifi not be prevented or

lqT;I[;:'fl,,1,1;:i'fl;::,:iil,',";JJi"'''' reporting, incruding rhe possibirity or coilusion or
of the internar nnanciar contrors 

"r", 
i"...,r:i""::lr t ff:ffi::::?: ltj.: r..i*",.l*,i:

::iJ:H:i::T:n:[avbecome in.o.or.,. becaus-e or.r,rneJ, in conditions, or that the degree

possible effect of material weakness described above in which case we have extended our auditany has maintained in all material ;o;.;;;li-rr," internarrinanciaicontrors over financiar reportingtrots over financiar reporting *"r" op"rriinJrir".tir"rv ,;;ffi;;; lozs, b.r"a on internar controrI established by the company considering th'e essentiar .orpon"nt, oi inte.nar contrors stated in thenal financial controls over financiar ,"ro.i,ng",rrued by,rr" ,rrii,r," 
"ichartered Accountants of rndia

For Balan & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 0003405

r, rrtulli
Partner

FCA

1262)
UDIN: 21.2628MH2UE5302
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Place: Aluva
Date:08.09.2025



"Annexure B" referred to in clause 2 of paragraph on the 'Report on other legar and Reguratory Requirements, of our report of
even date

(a)(i)

(b)

ln terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of account and records
examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of oul knowredge and berief, we state that:

$ff.?il:H,::::;l:iltl.oJtrtr records showing ruil particurars, incruding quantitative detairs and situation

(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of lntangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of thecompany' the company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment bywhich all Property' plant and equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. rn accordancewith this programme' certain Property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. rn our opinion, thisperiodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets.No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the inform,tion and explanations given by the Management, the titre deeds of a, the immovabreproperties (other than pr'perties where the Company is the lessee and the rease agreements are dury executed infavour of the lessee) are held in the name of the Company. *

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
;:tr# I:,:::i:ilr::;Jil";J:::"0 '" 

propertv, prant and equipment (incruding Right-or-use assets) or

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of thecompany' there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property underthe Prohibition of Benami property Transactions Act, lggg and rures made thereunder_
* Documents related to the additions in immovable property and infrastructure facirities in the books of accounts

,Tffililil::?:"T,.1'i;l:l;':Jljji:1fl:I'ff:mmission order is not avairabre ror verirication, we accepted

(a) The company's business dog5 ns1 involve inventories and, accordingry, the requirements under crause 3 (ii) (a) of theorder are not appricabre to the company and hence not commented upon

As disclosed in Note 3'6 to the accompanying standalone financial statements, the company has been sanctionedworking capital limits in excess of 'five crore' in aggregate from banks during the year on the basis of security of currentassets of the company' Based on the records examined by us in the normal course of audit of the standalone financialstatements' the quarterly rerturns/statements filed by the company with such banks are in agreement with the booksof accounts of the Company,.

According to the informatiorr and explanations given by the management, the principal business of the company is togive loans' Therefore' in our opinion, the provisions of clause 3(iii[a) of the order are not appricabre to the company.
According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit procedure performed by us, theinvestments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans andadvances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prejudiciar to the company,s interest;
According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of thecompany' in the case of loans given, the repayment of principar and payment of interest has been stipurated and therepayments or receipts have been regular.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of thecompany' the principal business of the company is to give loans, so the irregular repayments or receipts of loans andadvances overdue by more than 90 days are as below;

(c)

(d)

(e)

(ii)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(iii)



Number of

borrowers

Overdue amount more than
90 days (in Crores)

t552 15.59

(e)

(0

(d)Accordingtothelnforrnationan_dexplaniiionditprocedureperformedbyus,the
total amount overdue for more than ninety days is Rs.15.59 Crores, and the reasonable steps have been taken by the
company for recovery of the principal and interest.

According to the inforntation and explanations given by the management, the principal business of the company is to
give loans. Therefore, in our opinion, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(e) of the order are not applicable to the company.

According to the infornration and explanations given by the management and audit procedure performed by us, the
company has granted llans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any
terms or period of reprayment. The aggregate amount, percentage thereof to the total loans granted, aggregate
amount of loans granteld to Promoters, related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the companies Act,
2013 is as below;

(Amount in Crores)
Particulars All Parties Promoters Related parties
Aggregate Amount of loans/ advances in nature of loans
Repayable on demand (A) NilNil o.29
Agreement does not specify any terms or period of repayment Nit NilNil
(B)

Total (A+B)
0.29NilNil

Percentage of loans/ advances in nature of loans to the total Not

Applicable
Not

Applicable
o.29%

loans

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has complied with the provisions
of section 185 and 186 of the companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the order are not applicable

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the company is not in the business of sale of any goods. Therefore, in our
opinion, the provisions of claus;e 3(vi) of the order are not applicable to the company

(a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of excise and Value added tax during the
year since effective t July 2017, these statutory dues have been subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records, the
Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees, state insurance,
income-tax, cess, goods and service tax sales-tax, service tax, duty ofcustoms, duty ofexcise, value added tax and any
other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities.

According to the inforrration and explanations given to us and audit procedure performed by us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, cess, sales-tax, service tax,
dutyofcustoms,dutyofexcise,valueaddedtaxandotherstatutoryduesreferredabovewereinarrears asatMarch
3t 2025 for a period of nrore than slx months from the date they became payable except for the following:

Nature of Dues Period to which amount relates Amount
GST F.Y.2024-25 14,068/-

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of goods and service tax, provident fund,
employees' state insurance, goods and service tax, cess, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, value added tax which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute, except for the following

(b)



(viii)

Natur
sta

of the
ute

Nature of Dues Amount Period Forum where
pending

lncome ta lT matters under

dispute

4.28 crores 01-04-2011 to31-
03-2012

ITAT, Kochi

lncome taX lT matters under

dispute

0.L4 crores 01-04-2012 to31-
03-2013

ITAT, Kochi

The particulars of dues of income tax as at 31st March, 2025 which have not been fully deposited on account of dispute
Refer Note No 3.28 to the financial statements

According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedure performed by us, the Company has not
surrendered or disclosed any transaction as income in the tax assessments under the lncome Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961)
during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(a) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the company has not
defaulted in repayment ,cf loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government
or government authorit),.

According to the inform;rtion and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has obtained term loans
from the banks and financial institutions and term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were
obtained

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of the
Company, we report that no funds have been raised on short-term basis by the Company. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(d)
of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the Standalone financial
statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on
account of or to meet thr: obligations of its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause
3(ixXe) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the informiation and explanations given to us and audit procedure performed by us, the Company has
not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiarles or associate companies.

According to the informiltion and explanation given by the Management and audit procedure performed by us, the
Company has not raised ilny money by way of initial public offer or further public offer during the year. Further, monies
raised by the Company Lry way of private placement of non-convertible debentures were applied for the purpose for
which those were raised.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures cluring the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xXb) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination otlthe books and records of the Company and according to the information and explanations
given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the
Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audlt and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no whistle-blower complaints have been received during
the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xiXc) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(ix)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(a)(x)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(xi)



(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

lr.il:#:::i:ifiil:j;::.'"0 expranations siven to us, the companv is not a Nidhicompany. Accordingry, ctause 3(xii)

According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit procedures performed by us,transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section t77 andlgg of the Act where applicable and the detailshave been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

To the best of
commensurate,

According to the
Company has not
section 792 of C'

The compan

the Reserve

The

Accordingly,

Company as

the

There has been
applicable.

On the basis of the
dates of realization

statements, our
supporting the
exists as on the da1

sheet as and when
an assurance as to

one year from the

Therefore, the

Place: Aluva
Date: 08.09.2025

knowledgr: and as explained, the company is not required to have the lnternal Auditor systemthe size and nature of its business, Accordingly, clause 3(xiv) of the order is not applicable.

ion and explanations given by the management and audit procedures
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with

r's Reporrt) order (cARo) is reported on the standalone financial statements of the company.of clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For Balan & Co.,
Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number: 000340S

performed by us, the
r him as referred to in

(xvi)

Act, 2013.

(c)

(d)

(b)

(a)

According

The

of 1934).

is required and obtained the registration under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of lndia Act, tg34 (2

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

The Company has incurred cash rosses in the current and in the immediatery preceding financiar year.

has not conducted Non-Banking Financial activities without a valid certificate of Registration (coR) fromank of lndia as per the Reserve Bank of lndia Act, 1934;

is not a core lnvestment company (clc) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of lndia.lause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, there is no core lnvestmentI part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvixd) of the order is not applicable to

resignation r:f the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the order is not

iinancial ratios disclosed in Note 3.29 to the accompanying financial statements, ageing and expectedof financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
'trledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidencenptions' nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertaintyof the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balancetey fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. we, however, state that this is not15 notfuture viability of the Company. we further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to thet and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period ofnce sheet date, wiil get discharged by the company as and when they fail due.

date of the audit

(xxi)

(xx)

The Companies

According to the tion and explanations given by the Management and audit procedures performed by us, the csRrequirement norms
f::::tl"ll'^tj1^"::T::rpanies 1" 19t, 

doesn't appry to the company during the year,hence the under crause 3 (xx)of the order are not appricabre to the company r"r;;;##;ffi.

t) h*
?. Moha/das FCA
eartner(M.N o.o21262)

ffi
UDIN: 2 5 02 1 2 6ZBMHZUES3O}






























































